
A G E N D A 
 

The Waxahachie Planning & Zoning Commission will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, 

January 28, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at 401 S. Rogers St., Waxahachie, TX 

 

 Commission Members: Rick Keeler, Chairman 

     Melissa Ballard, Vice Chairman 

     Betty Square Coleman 

     Bonney Ramsey 

     Jim Phillips 

     David Hudgins 

     Erik Test 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Invocation 

 

3. Public Comments:  Persons may address the Planning & Zoning Commission on any 

issues.  This is the appropriate time for citizens to address the Commission on any concern 

whether on this agenda or not.  In accordance with the State of Texas Open Meetings Act, 

the Commission may not comment or deliberate such statements during this period, except 

as authorized by Section 551.042, Texas Government Code. 

 

4. Consent Agenda 
 

All matters listed under Item 4, Consent Agenda, are considered routine by the Planning & 

Zoning Commission and will be enacted by one motion. There will not be separate 

discussion of these items. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the Chairman to 

execute all matters necessary to implement each item. Any item may be removed from the 

Consent Agenda for separate discussion and consideration by any member of the Planning 

& Zoning Commission. 

 

a. Minutes of the regular Planning & Zoning Commission meeting of January 14, 2020 

b. Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission briefing of January 14, 2020 

 

5. Continue Public Hearing on a request by Michael Martin, Bannister Engineering, for a 

Zoning Change from a Light Industrial-1 and Heavy Industrial to Planned Development-

General Retail and Planned Development-Multi Family-2, with Concept Plan, located SW 

of Butcher Road at N Highway 77 (Property ID 189377, 189370, and 239005) - Owner: 

DMJ Properties LTD, Saldena Properties LP, and Citizens National Bank in Waxahachie 

(PD-19-0175) 

 

6. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. PD-19-0175 

 

7. Public Hearing on a request by Brad Yates, Loren Gray Investments LLC, for a Replat of 

Lots 8A and 16A, Block 5, Town Addition, to create Lots 1 and 2, Block A, Yinger 

Addition, 0.2279 acres (Property ID 170607) – Owner: Loren Gray Investments LLC (RP-

19-0167) 

 

 



8. Consider approval of RP-19-0167 

 

9. Public Hearing on a request by Chip G. Boyd, JH Development, for a Zoning Change 

from a Planned Development-23-Single Family-1 zoning district to a Single Family-1 

zoning district located East of the intersection of Hunter Pass and FM 877 (Property ID 

183566) - Owner: Bobby Lide Inc. (ZC-19-0152) 

 

10. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. ZC-19-0152 

 

11. Consider request by Chip G. Boyd, JH Development, for a Plat of Sanctuary for 86 

residential lots and 1 common area being 110.484 acres situated in the WC Coleman 

Survey, Abstract 204, AB Fluery Survey, Abstract 374, and the M Rafferty Survey, 

Abstract 898  (Property ID 183566) - Owner: Bobby Lide Inc. (PL-19-0153) 

 

12. Public Hearing on a request by Mark Thedford, Akamai Designs, for a Replat of Lot 7R, 

Block B, Indian Hills Addition, Unit VII to create Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block A, Stone Creek 

Estates, 1.787 acres (Property ID 221873) – Owner: Akamai Designs Inc. (RP-19-0157) 

 

13. Consider approval of RP-19-0157 

 

14. Adjourn 

 

The P&Z reserves the right to go into Executive Session on any posted item. 

This meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. Parking for mobility-impaired persons is available.  

Any request for sign interpretive services must be made forty-eight hours ahead of the meeting.  

To make arrangements, call the City Secretary at (469) 309-4005 or (TDD) 1-800-RELAY TX. 

 

Notice of Potential Quorum 

One or more members of the Waxahachie City Council may be present at this meeting. 

No action will be taken by the City Council at this meeting. 

 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 
 

 

The Waxahachie Planning & Zoning Commission held a regular meeting on Tuesday, January 14, 

2020 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at 401 S. Rogers St., Waxahachie, TX 
 

Members Present: Rick Keeler, Chairman 

     Melissa Ballard, Vice Chairman 

     Betty Square Coleman 

     Bonney Ramsey 

     David Hudgins 

     Erik Test 

 

  Member Absent: Jim Phillips 

 

  Others Present:  Shon Brooks, Director of Planning 

Colby Collins, Senior Planner 

Chris Webb, Planner 

Macey Martinez, Graduate Engineer 

Lori Cartwright, City Secretary 

Mary Lou Shipley, Council Representative 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

 

Chairman Rick Keeler called the meeting to order and gave the invocation. 

 

3. Public Comments 

 

Ms. Jennifer Chelwick, 2222 Abela Drive, Waxahachie, HOA President of Arbors at Willow 

Grove, expressed concern with proposed Plat (PL-19-0154) being the Arbors Two for 125 

residential lots.  She stated there is only one ingress and egress on the property and with the 

additional construction of houses, it will be more difficult getting onto Highway 77. She requested 

additional access roads with Plat approval.  

 

Mr. Marty Hiles, 105 Holly Street, Waxahachie, stated the access in and out of the Arbors at 

Willow Grove is a safety concern.  He stated four years ago they were told that there would be an 

access road from Lillian Street to North Grove Road and explained to date there are no additional 

roads in and out of the Arbors at Willow Grove.  Mr. Hiles stated additional roads must accompany 

the Arbors Two proposal.  

 

Ms. Amy Hedtke, 106 Vanderbilt, Waxahachie, referenced the political signage and expressed 

concern with rights to property owners pertaining to permitting for political signage.  She stated 

each sign is an expression of speech. 

 

4. Consent Agenda 

 

a. Minutes of the regular Planning & Zoning Commission meeting of December 17, 

2019 

b. Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission briefing of December 17, 2019 

 

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(4a)



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 

Action:  

Mrs. Bonney Ramsey moved to approve items a. and b. on the Consent Agenda. Vice Chairman 

Melissa Ballard seconded, All Ayes. 

 

5. Public Hearing on a request by Michael Martin, Bannister Engineering, for a Zoning 

Change from a Light Industrial-1 and Heavy Industrial to Planned Development-

General Retail and Planned Development-Multi Family-2, with Concept Plan, located 

SW of Butcher Road at N Highway 77 (Property ID 189377, 189370, and 239005) - 

Owner: DMJ Properties LTD, Saldena Properties LP, and Citizens National Bank in 

Waxahachie (PD-19-0175) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing and announced the applicant requested to continue 

PD-19-0175 to the January 28, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. 

 

6. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. PD-19-0175 

 

Action: 

Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard moved to continue the Public Hearing on a request by Michael 

Martin, Bannister Engineering, for a Zoning Change from a Light Industrial-1 and Heavy 

Industrial to Planned Development-General Retail and Planned Development-Multi Family-2, 

with Concept Plan, located SW of Butcher Road at N Highway 77 (Property ID 189377, 189370, 

and 239005) - Owner: DMJ Properties LTD, Saldena Properties LP, and Citizens National Bank 

in Waxahachie (PD-19-0175) to the January 28, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. 

Ms. Betty Square Coleman seconded, All Ayes.  

 

7. Consider request by George Salvador, Lillian Custom Homes, for a Plat of The 

Arbors Two for 125 residential lots and 2 park lots being 41.709 acres situated in the 

H Sange Survey, Abstract 1009 and the J Starrett Survey, Abstract 1024  (Property 

ID 267116) - Owner: Arbors WG Development LLC (PL-19-0154) 

 

Mr. Chris Webb, Planner, reported the Plat is an extension of the Arbors Development.  He stated 

the Plat has met all Subdivision requirements and recommended approval.   

 

Assistant City Manager Tommy Ludwig addressed the traffic issue at the Arbors at Willow Grove 

noting City Staff received notification from TxDOT today that there will be a light at their 

intersection and will be constructed this summer.  He stated, in terms of North Grove to Arbor at 

Willow Grove, the city is working actively on a temporary access.  

 

Action: 

Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard moved to approve a request by George Salvador, Lillian Custom 

Homes, for a Plat of The Arbors Two for 125 residential lots and 2 park lots being 41.709 acres 

situated in the H Sange Survey, Abstract 1009 and the J Starrett Survey, Abstract 1024 (Property 

ID 267116) - Owner: Arbors WG Development LLC (PL-19-0154) subject to staff comments. Mrs. 

Bonney Ramsey seconded, All Ayes.  

 

8. Consider request by Grayson Ceballos, Windrose Land Surveying, for a Plat of 

Steadham Addition for 2 lots being 21.333 acres situated in the J. Liles Survey, 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 3 
 

 

Abstract 660 (Property ID 263967) in the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction - Owner: 

Steven C & April R Steadham (PL-19-0145) 

 

Mr. Webb reported the applicant seeks to establish two (2) platted lots for single-family use.  He 

stated there is adequate water and fire flow established for this property and recommended 

approval.  

 

Action: 

Mrs. Bonney Ramsey moved to approve a request by Grayson Ceballos, Windrose Land Surveying, 

for a Plat of Steadham Addition for 2 lots being 21.333 acres situated in the J. Liles Survey, 

Abstract 660 (Property ID 263967) in the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction - Owner: Steven C & April 

R Steadham (PL-19-0145) subject to staff comments. Mr. Erik Test seconded, All Ayes.  

 

9. Public Hearing on a request by Dalton Bradbury, Southfork Capital, for a Replat of 

Block 23 of Town Addition to create Lots 1-6, Block A, Bradbury Addition, 2.445 

acres (Property ID 193492) – Owner: Southfork Capital LLC (RP-19-0148) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Webb reported the applicant is replatting the property to allow for five (5) single-family lots.  

Staff recommended approval.    

 

There being no others to speak for or against RP-19-0148, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

10. Consider approval of RP-19-0148 

 

Action: 

Mr. David Hudgins moved to approve a request by Dalton Bradbury, Southfork Capital, for a 

Replat of Block 23 of Town Addition to create Lots 1-6, Block A, Bradbury Addition, 2.445 acres 

(Property ID 193492) – Owner: Southfork Capital LLC (RP-19-0148).  Mr. Erik Test seconded, 

All Ayes.  

 

11. Public Hearing on a request by Amy Carlisle, Green Light Solar, for a Specific Use 

Permit (SUP) for Rooftop Solar Panel System use within a Planned Development-

Single Family-2 zoning district located at 110 Broken Arrow Street (Property ID 

267494) – Owner: Lisa H Barshofsky and Karen Hadley (SU-19-0164) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Webb reported the applicant seeks to install rooftop solar panels on a single-family residence.  

He recommended approval noting it meets the zoning requirements. Staff received one letter of 

support. 

 

There being no others to speak for or against SU-19-0164, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 4 
 

 

12. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. SU-19-0164 

Action: 

Mr. David Hudgins moved to approve a request by Amy Carlisle, Green Light Solar, for a Specific 

Use Permit (SUP) for Rooftop Solar Panel System use within a Planned Development-Single 

Family-2 zoning district located at 110 Broken Arrow Street (Property ID 267494) – Owner: Lisa 

H Barshofsky and Karen Hadley (SU-19-0164).  Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard seconded, All 

Ayes.  

 

13. Public Hearing on a request by Rostin Javahery, Equisolar, for a Specific Use Permit 

(SUP) for Rooftop Solar Panel System use within a Planned Development-Single 

Family-2 zoning district located at 510 Timber Drive (Property ID 222745) – Owner: 

Frederico Palafox and Emma Y Sigala (SU-19-0165) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing.  

 

Mr. Webb reported the applicant seeks to install rooftop solar panels on a single-family residence.  

He recommended approval noting it meets the zoning requirements. Staff received three letters of 

support.   

 

There being no others to speak for or against SU-19-0165, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

14. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. SU-19-0165 

 

Action: 

Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard moved to approve a request by Rostin Javahery, Equisolar, for a 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Rooftop Solar Panel System use within a Planned Development-

Single Family-2 zoning district located at 510 Timber Drive (Property ID 222745) – Owner: 

Frederico Palafox and Emma Y Sigala (SU-19-0165) subject to staff comments. Mrs. Bonney 

Ramsey seconded, All Ayes. 

 

15. Public Hearing on a request by Chris Acker, Acker Construction, for a Zoning 

Change from a Light Industrial-1 zoning district to Planned Development-Light 

Industrial-1, with Concept Plan, located at 110 Lucas Street (Property ID 195216) - 

Owner: Crux Jefferson LLC (PD-19-0172) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Colby Collins, Senior Planner reported the Applicant ordered the buildings at 80 feet and they 

came in at 93 feet 3 inches, which does not meet the setback requirements.  Mr. Shon Brooks, 

Director of Planning, explained the erected buildings require an alternate drainage plan.  He 

recommended approval based on an approved alternate drainage plan. 

 

Mr. Chris Acker, 4100 Honeysuckle Road, Midlothian, applicant was available for questions.  

Chairman Keeler asked if he could put additional live landscaping to the back of the buildings and 

Mr. Acker agreed. Chairman Keeler asked if the owner of the surgery center is also the owner of 

the storage units and Mr. Acker stated the doctor owns both. 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 5 
 

 

There being no others to speak for or against PD-19-0172, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

16. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. PD-19-0172 

 

Action: 

Mrs. Bonney Ramsey moved to approve a request by Chris Acker, Acker Construction, for a Zoning 

Change from a Light Industrial-1 zoning district to Planned Development-Light Industrial-1, with 

Concept Plan, located at 110 Lucas Street (Property ID 195216) - Owner: Crux Jefferson LLC 

(PD-19-0172) subject to staff comments. Mr. Erik Test seconded, All Ayes.  

 

17. Public Hearing on a request by Stuart Shaw, Cypress Creek Waxahachie LP, for a 

Zoning Change from a Single Family-2 and Planned Development District-49-

General Retail, Multi-Family-Two Family zoning district to Planned Development-

Multiple Family-2, with Concept Plan, located NW of Post Oak Drive at Highway 287 

(Property ID 184249) - Owner: AMERITAI PARTNERSHIP (PD-19-0174) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Collins reported the Commission approved the initial case at their meeting of November 12, 

2019 and City Council denied the proposed development at their meeting of November 18, 2019. 

He stated the Applicant currently proposes the following: 

 

• A minimum of 90% masonry  

• 168 detached garages  

• An 8-foot masonry fence is required adjacent to the single-family River Oaks subdivision 

A 6-foot decorative ornamental fence is required along the remainder of the property (front, 

sides, and rear) 

• Connectivity to the adjacent hike/bike trail at Brown Singleton Trail 

Applicant request the roof pitch along the sides be 5:12 pitch instead of the required 7:12 

pitch.  Staff recommended enforcing the 7:12 pitch on all sides.   

 

Mr. Collins stated a Developers Agreement is required and reported nine (9) letters of oppositions 

were received.  Staff recommended approval per proposal 

 

Mr. Collins stated staff received nine (9) letters in opposition.  Staff recommended approval 

subject to all staff comments.  

 

Mr. Stuart Shaw, applicant, Austin Texas, stated they will extend the road and developers coming 

in behind them will develop their portion of the road. He explained the frontage area is retail and 

the multi-family will be to the back.  He agreed to comply with the 7:12 roof pitch on all sides and 

the 8-foot fence.  He stated  Cypress Creek Waxahachie LP will add additional buffer noting  they 

always exceed the landscaping requirements.  

 

Those who spoke against PD-19-0174: 

 

Mr. Ronald Thedford, 317 Myrtle, Waxahachie  



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 6 
 

 

There being no others to speak for or against PD-19-0174, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

18. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. PD-19-0174 

 

Action: 

Mr. Erik Test moved to deny a request by Stuart Shaw, Cypress Creek Waxahachie LP, for a 

Zoning Change from a Single Family-2 and Planned Development District-49-General Retail, 

Multi-Family-Two Family zoning district to Planned Development-Multiple Family-2, with 

Concept Plan, located NW of Post Oak Drive at Highway 287 (Property ID 184249) - Owner: 

AMERITAI PARTNERSHIP (PD-19-0174).   

 

The motion died due to a lack of second.   

 

Action: 

Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard moved to approve a request by Stuart Shaw, Cypress Creek 

Waxahachie LP, for a Zoning Change from a Single Family-2 and Planned Development District-

49-General Retail, Multi-Family-Two Family zoning district to Planned Development-Multiple 

Family-2, with Concept Plan, located NW of Post Oak Drive at Highway 287 (Property ID 

184249) - Owner: AMERITAI PARTNERSHIP (PD-19-0174), subject to staff comments and 

requiring a 7:12 roof pitch on all sides of building.  Ms. Betty Square Coleman seconded.  The 

vote was as follows: 

     Ayes: Rick Keeler   

      Melissa Ballard 

      Betty Square Coleman 

      Bonney Ramsey 

      David Hudgins 

 

     Noes: Erik Test 

 

The motion carried.  

 

19. Continue Public Hearing on a request by James Pool, Cross Development, for a 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Auto Repair (Major) use within a Commercial zoning 

district, located at 2001 Corporate Parkway (Property ID 273977) – Owner: 

LEDBETTER REAL ESTATE LTD (SU-19-0133) 

 

Chairman Keeler continued the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Collins reported the applicant request to construct a Caliber Collision (Auto Body Repair & 

Paint Shop) within the North Grove Business Park development.  Staff believes the request has the 

potential to create a considerable change to the character of the surrounding area and recommended 

denial. 

 

Mr. James Pool, applicant, Cross Development, 4336 March Ridge Road, Carrolton, stated he had 

several meetings with staff and made changes accordingly.  He stated the building has service only 

on the south side where there are no other neighbors.  They swapped out with masonry and added 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 7 
 

 

additional landscaping.   Mr. Pool stated this is a good addition to the community and will serve 

the citizens.   

 

Chairman Keeler asked if they paint and the applicant stated they do paint. 

 

Those who spoke against SU-19-0133: 

 

Ms. Rhonda Anderson, 212 Katy Lake Drive, Waxahachie 

Mr. Ryan Anderson, 200 Southern Avenue, Avalon  

 

Mr. Brett Hess, 327 Blue Ribbon Road, Waxahachie, representing the applicant stated Caliber 

would be a large investment for this area.  

 

There being no others to speak for or against SU-19-0133, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

20. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. SU-19-0133 

 

Action: 

Vice Chairman Melissa Ballard moved to deny a request by James Pool, Cross Development, for 

a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Auto Repair (Major) use within a Commercial zoning district, 

located at 2001 Corporate Parkway (Property ID 273977) – Owner: LEDBETTER REAL ESTATE 

LTD (SU-19-0133) subject to Staff Comments and. Ms. Betty Square Coleman seconded, All Ayes.  

 

21. Public Hearing on a request by the City of Waxahachie for a textual amendment to 

the City Zoning Ordinance, Ordinance No. 3020, to Article IV Definitions and Use 

Regulations, Section 4.01 Definitions, to Article IV Definitions and Use Regulations, 

Section 4.03 Use Charts, to Article V Development Standards, Section 5.01 Exterior 

Construction Requirements, and to Article V Development Standards, Section 5.07 

Accessory Structures and Accessory Uses  (TA-19-0177) 

 

Chairman Keeler opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Mr. Shon Brooks, Director of Planning, reviewed proposed text amendments for Article IV and V 

of the City of Waxahachie Zoning Ordinance.  He reviewed the following: 

 

• Roof top solar panels request will not require approval from the Commission and City 

Council and will be approved at Staff level.  

• Increasing the masonry coverage to 90%. 

• Metal shipping containers may not function as the structure of a residence. 

• Accessory structures are limited to two (2) per single-family residential structures. 

• Regulations pertaining to boat dock accessory structures. 

 

Mr. Brooks stated Section 9 of Article V, Development Standards, Section 5.08 Sign Regulations 

will not be part of the proposed changes and explained the city attorney drafted regulations 

conflicting with state guidelines and the city attorney will need to re-evaluate proposed 

amendments.  



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 8 
 

 

There being no others to speak for or against TA-19-0177, Chairman Keeler closed the Public 

Hearing. 

 

22. Consider recommendation of Zoning Change No. TA-19-0177 

 

Action: 

Ms. Betty Square Coleman moved to approve a request by the City of Waxahachie for a textual 

amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, Ordinance No. 3020, to Article IV Definitions and Use 

Regulations, Section 4.01 Definitions, to Article IV Definitions and Use Regulations, Section 4.03 

Use Charts, to Article V Development Standards, Section 5.01 Exterior Construction 

Requirements, and to Article V Development Standards, Section 5.07 Accessory Structures and 

Accessory Uses (TA-19-0177) deleting Section 9 of Article V, Development Standards, Section 

5.08 Sign Regulation .  Mr. David Hudgins seconded, All Ayes.  

 

23. Adjourn 

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Lori Cartwright 

City Secretary 

 



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 1 
 

 

The Waxahachie Planning & Zoning Commission held a briefing session on Tuesday, January 14, 

2020 at 6:15 p.m. in the City Council Conference Room at 401 S. Rogers St., Waxahachie, TX. 
 

Members Present: Rick Keeler, Chairman 

     Melissa Ballard, Vice Chairman 

     Betty Square Coleman 

     Bonney Ramsey 

     David Hudgins 

Erik Test 

 

  Member Absent: Jim Phillips 

 

  Others Present:  Shon Brooks, Director of Planning 

Colby Collins, Senior Planner 

Chris Webb, Planner 

Macey Martinez, Graduate Engineer 

Lori Cartwright, City Secretary 

Mary Lou Shipley, Council Representative 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Chairman Rick Keeler called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Conduct a briefing to discuss items for the 7:00 p.m. regular meeting 

 

Staff reviewed the following cases: 

 

 PD-19-0175 – Applicant requested to continue to the Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting of January 28, 2020 and City Council of February 3, 2020 

 PL-19-0154 – Applicant requested to create a second addition to the Arbor at Willow 

Grove.  Staff recommend approval as presented. 

 PL-19-0145 – Applicant requested to establish two (2) platted legal lots for single-family 

use located in the ETJ.  Staff reported there is adequate water and fire flow to the property 

and recommended approval as presented.  

 RP-19-0148 – Applicant requested replatting of property to allow five (5) single-family 

lots to be established.  Staff reported the other half of the property will remain open and 

recommended approval as presented.  

 SU-19-0164 – Applicant requested rooftop solar panel system and it meets staff 

requirements.  Staff recommended approval as presented. 

 SU-19-0165 - Applicant requested rooftop solar panel system and it meets staff 

requirements.  Staff recommended approval as presented. 

 PD-19-0172 – Applicant is requesting approval for a Planned Development, as the storage 

structures do not meet the setback requirements for the zoning district.  Applicant ordered 

the buildings at 80 feet and they came in at 93 feet 3 inches, which does not meet the 

setback requirements.  Mr. Shon Brooks, Director of Planning, explained the buildings are 

installed and staff will need an alternate drainage plan.  He recommended approval based 

on an approved alternate drainage plan.  

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(4b)



Planning and Zoning Commission 

January 14, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 

 PD-19-0174 – Staff reported the Commission approved the initial case at their meeting of 

November 12, 2019.  City Council denied the proposed development at their meeting of 

November 18, 2019. The Applicant currently proposes the following: 

 

 a minimum 90% masonry wall be provided for the development 

 168 detached garages will be provided for the development 

 An 8-foot masonry fence is required adjacent to the single-family River Oaks 

subdivision.  A 6 foot decorative ornamental fence is required along the remainder 

of the property (front, sides, and rear) 

 Connectivity shall be provided to the adjacent hike/bike trail at Brown Singleton 

Trail 

Applicant requested the roof pitch along the sides be 5:12 pitch instead of the required 7:12 pitch.  

Staff recommended enforcing the 7:12 pitch on all sides.  They stated a Developers Agreement is 

required.  Staff received nine (9) letters of oppositions.  They recommended approval per proposal. 

 

{Ms. Betty Coleman arrived at 6:38 p.m.} 

 

 SU-19-0133 – Applicant requested to construct a Caliber Collision (Auto Body Repair & 

Paint Shop) within the North Grove Business Park development.  Staff believes the request 

has the potential to create a considerable change to the character of the surrounding area 

and recommended denial.  

 

 TA-19-0177 – Mr. Brooks reviewed proposed text amendments for Article IV and V of the 

City of Waxahachie Zoning Ordinance.  He reviewed the following: 

 

 Roof top solar panels request will not require approval from the Commission and 

City Council and approved at Staff level.  

 Increasing the masonry coverage to 90%. 

 Metal shipping containers may not function as the structure of a residence. 

 Accessory structures are limited to two (2) per single-family residential structures. 

 Regulations pertaining to boat dock accessory structures. 

 

Mr. Brooks stated Section 9 of Article V, Development Standards, Section 5.08 Sign Regulations 

will not be part of the proposed changes in the draft.  He explained the city attorney drafted 

regulations conflicting with state guidelines and the city attorney will need to re-evaluate proposed 

amendments. The Commission held discussion on the size of political signs and staff reported the 

state law is 9 feet by 4 feet.  

 

3. Adjourn  

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:54 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Lori Cartwright 

City Secretary 



avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(5 & 6)



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING DATE(S) 
Planning & Zoning Commission:   January 28, 2020 
 
CAPTION 
Public Hearing on a request by Brad Yates, Loren Gray Investments LLC, for a Replat of Lots 8A and 16A, 
Block 5, Town Addition, to create Lots 1 and 2, Block A, Yinger Addition, 0.2279 acres (Property ID 
170607) – Owner: Loren Gray Investments LLC (RP-19-0167) 
 
APPLICANT REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting a replat to move an existing property line to allow for the construction of a 
single family residence. 
 
CASE INFORMATION 
Applicant:    Brad Yates, Loren Gray Investments, LLC. 
 
Property Owner(s):   Loren Gray Investments, LLC. 
 
Site Acreage:    0.2279 acres 
 
Number of Lots:    2 lots 
 
Number of Dwelling Units:  2 units  
 
Park Land Dedication: N/A. The proposed replat is moving a lot line and not creating a 

new lot. Therefore the Park Land Dedication fee doesn’t apply. 
 
Adequate Public Facilities: Adequate public facilities are available to this property.  
 
SUBJECT PROPERTY 
General Location: Lot neighboring 15 Yinger St. 
 
Parcel ID Number(s): 170607 
 
Current Zoning:    SF-2 (Infill) 
 
Existing Use:     Undeveloped 
 
Platting History:   LOT 8A & 16A BLK 5 TOWN 
 

Planning & Zoning Department 
Plat Staff Report  
Case: RP-19-0167 

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(7)



 
 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Site Aerial:   
 

 
 
PON RESPONSES 
Staff received four (4) letters of support for the proposed development. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the 
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends: 
 

 Disapproval 
 Approval, as presented. 
 Approval, per the following conditions: 

 
ATTACHED EXHIBITS 

1. Plat drawing 
2. PON Responses 

 
APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS  

1. If approved by City Council, within 30 days the applicant shall provide the Planning 
Department one revised electronic plan set that incorporates all comments. 

 

CITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAT RECORDING AND FILING 

A plat shall not be filed with the Ellis County Clerk until: 

1. All utilities, infrastructure, and other required improvements have been installed and a 
letter of acceptance associated with the utilities and infrastructure installation has been 
received from the Public Works Department; 

2. A drainage study has been conducted and/or a traffic impact analysis has been conducted as 
required by the City’s subdivision ordinance.  

 
STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION 
 Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 Chris Webb      Shon Brooks, AICP 
 Planner       Director of Planning 
 cwebb@waxahachie.com    sbrooks@waxahachie.com  



WLSC

Replat

Being a Two Lot Residential Replat of a Portion of
Lot 3, Block 5 (0.2279 Acres)

Town Addition
An Addition in the City of Waxahachie

Ellis County, Texas
Prepared : November, 2019

FOR INSPECTION PURPOSES ONLY,
AND IN NO WAY OFFICIAL OR

APPROVED FOR RECORD PURPOSES.

Zoned : Single Family - 2

Yi
ng

er
 St

re
et















Case Number FP-19-0167













   Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING DATE(S) 
Planning & Zoning Commission:   January 28, 2020 
 
City Council:     February 3, 2020 
 
CAPTION 
Request by Chip G. Boyd, JH Development, for a Zoning Change from a Planned Development-23-Single 
Family-1 zoning district to a Single Family-1 zoning district located East of the intersection of Hunter Pass 
and FM 877 (Property ID 183566) - Owner: Bobby Lide Inc. (ZC-19-0152) 
 
APPLICANT REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting a zoning change from Planned Development-23-Single Family-1 (PD-23-SF1) 
to Single Family-1 (SF1) to create a single family residential development. 
 
*The annexation case (AX-19-0158) for this property was reviewed by City Council as a Public Hearing 
item on January 6, 2020.  City Council is scheduled to take action on the item on February 3, 2020. 
 
CASE INFORMATION 
Applicant:    Chip G. Boyd, JH Development 
 
Property Owner(s):   Bobby Lide Inc. 
 
Site Acreage:    110.5 acres 
 
Current Zoning:    Planned Development-23-Single Family-1  
 
Requested Zoning:   Single Family-1 
 
SUBJECT PROPERTY 
General Location: East of the intersection of Hunter Pass and FM 877 
 
Parcel ID Number(s): 183566 
 
Existing Use:     Currently Undeveloped 
 
Development History:   N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning & Zoning Department 
Zoning Staff Report  

Case:   ZC-19-0152 

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(9)



   Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Table 1: Adjoining Zoning & Uses  

Direction Zoning Current Use 
North PD-23-SF1 & FD Currently Undeveloped 
East ETJ Currently Undeveloped 

South ETJ Single Family Residential 
West FD Currently Undeveloped 

 
Future Land Use Plan:   Estate Residential 
 
Comprehensive Plan: This use is representative of traditional, single-family detached 

dwellings on large lots that are over one acre in size. This type 
of land is envisioned to primarily be located in the southern 
portion of the City and in the ETJ area south and west of 
Waxahachie. 

 
Thoroughfare Plan:   The subject property is accessible via Howard Rd. 
 
Site Image:   

 

 
 
PLANNING ANALYSIS 
Purpose of Request: 
The applicant is requesting a zoning change from Planned Development-23-Single Family-1 (PD-23-SF1) 
to Single Family-1 (SF1) to create a single family residential development. 
 
Proposed Use: 
The applicant is requesting approval for a zoning change to accommodate development of a single 
family residential development consisting of eighty-seven lots (86 dwelling unit lots; 1 open 
space/common area lot) on 110.5 acres located East of the intersection of Hunter Pass and FM 877.  
 



   Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Each lot within the development will be one acre minimum lots, and the applicant intends to meet all 
Single Family-1 zoning district requirements. 
 
Staff Note: The annexation case (AX-19-0158) for this property was reviewed by City Council as a Public 
Hearing item on January 6, 2020.  City Council is scheduled to take action on the item on February 3, 
2020. 
 
The Concept Plan depicts a residential development that includes elements such as: 

 Open Space/Common Area 
 Community Pond (Detention/Amenity Pond) 

 
Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan: 
Residential developments can include low density residential, medium density residential, and high 
density residential. The proposed development is consistent with the FLUP and the following goals and 
objectives in the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Addendum:  

 Growth Strategies – Goal 1: Encourage the most desirable, efficient use of land while 
maintaining and enhancing local aesthetics. 

 Growth Strategies – Goal 3: Ensure that land use recommendations for development 
and redevelopment respect critical physical features and support innovative 
development. 

 Growth Strategies – Goal 12: Promote growth of the community where infrastructure 
exists. 

 
Table 2: Proposed Single Family Residential (per SF1 standards) 
***Items highlighted in bold do not meet the City of Waxahachie SF1 requirements*** 

Standard City of Waxahachie Sanctuary Meets 
Min. Lot Area 16,000 sq. ft. 43,560 sq. ft. Yes 
Min. Lot Width 90 ft. 150 ft. Yes 
Min. Lot Depth 140 ft. 290 ft. Yes 
Min. Front Setback 40 ft. 40 ft. Yes 
Min. Interior Setback 15 ft; 20 ft (ROW) 15 ft.; 20 ft. (ROW) Yes 
Min. Rear Setback 25 ft. 25 ft. Yes 
Min. Dwelling Size 2,200 sq. ft. 2,200 sq. ft. Yes 
Max. Height 2 stories (main 

structure); 1 story 
(accessory structure) 

2 stories (main 
structure); 1 story 
(accessory structure) 

Yes 

Max. Lot Coverage 50% 50% Yes 
Parking Min. of two (2) 

enclosed parking spaces 
behind the front 
building line on the 
same lot as the main 
structure 

Min. of two (2) 
enclosed parking 
spaces behind the 
front building line on 
the same lot as the 
main structure 

Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 



   Page 4 of 4 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATIONS 
To comply with State law contained in Local Government Code Chapter 211 and the City’s public hearing 
notice requirements, 19 notices were mailed to property owners within 200 feet of the request. In 
addition, a notice was published in the Waxahachie Sun and a sign was visibly posted at the property. 
 
STAFF CONCERNS 

1. Staff has no outstanding concerns for the applicant. 
 
APPLICANT RESPONSE TO CONCERNS 

1. The applicant has addressed all staff concerns. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the 
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends: 
 

 Denial 
 Approval, as presented. 
 Approval, per the following comments: 

 
ATTACHED EXHIBITS 

1. Concept Plan 
2. Survey 

 
APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS  

1. If approved by City Council, within 30 days the applicant shall provide the Planning 
Department one revised electronic plan set that incorporates all comments. 

2. Once the revised plans are provided, staff will verify all outstanding comments were 
satisfied.  

a. If comments were not satisfied, then applicant will be notified to make corrections.  
b. If all comments satisfied, applicant shall provide a set of drawings that incorporate 

all comments. 
 

STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
 Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 Colby Collins      Shon Brooks, AICP 
 Senior Planner       Director of Planning 
 ccollins@waxahachie.com    sbrooks@waxahachie.com  
 



HO
W

AR
D 

RD
. (

FM
 8

77
)

SANCTUARY PLACE

QUIET WATERS WAY

PLACID LANE

50' R.O.W.

50
' R

.O
.W

.

DW
EL

LIN
G 

PL
AC

E
50

' R
.O

.W
.

50' R.O.W
.

PARADISE COVE

HA
RB

OR
 P

OI
NT

HI
DD

EN
 W

AT
ER

S W
AY

HARBOR POINT

QUIET WATERS WAY

PLACID LANE

50' R.O.W.

50' R.O.W.

HARBOR POINT

TER PASS
HUN

BO

J.    V O L K
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972.201.3100   Texas Registration No. F-11962

c o n s u l t i n g
CONCEPT PLAN

86 SF LOTS - 1 AC MIN
CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS



Δ

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

“ ”

1
1190281"=200'2019-11-01RSR

GRAPHIC SCALE



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING DATE(S) 
Planning & Zoning Commission:   January 28, 2020 
 
City Council:     February 3, 2020 
 
CAPTION 
Consider request by Chip G. Boyd, JH Development, for a Plat of Sanctuary for 86 residential lots and 1 
common area being 110.484 acres situated in the WC Coleman Survey, Abstract 204, AB Fluery Survey, 
Abstract 374, and the M Rafferty Survey, Abstract 898 (Property ID 183566) - Owner: Bobby Lide Inc. 
(PL-19-0153) 
 
APPLICANT REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting a plat that would establish eighty-six (86) 1-acre single family lots and one (1) 
common area lot for a new subdivision.  The applicant will also be requesting a Petition of Relief from 
City Council to allow a dead end street that exceeds what is allowable in the subdivision ordinance.  
 
CASE INFORMATION 
Applicant:    Chip G. Boyd, JH Development 
 
Property Owner(s):   Bobby Lide Inc. 
 
Site Acreage:    110.5 acres 
 
Number of Lots:    87 lots 
 
Number of Dwelling Units:  86 units  
 
Park Land Dedication: The cash in lieu of park land dedication for this case is estimated 

at $34,600.00 (86 residential dwellings at $400.00 per 
dwelling). 

 
Adequate Public Facilities: Adequate water can be supplied to this property. All sewer will 

be handled by septic systems. 
 
SUBJECT PROPERTY 
General Location: 4101 Howard Rd 
 
Parcel ID Number(s): 183566 
 
Current Zoning:    PD-SF-1 & FD but will be changed to SF-1 per ZC-19-0152 
 
Existing Use:     Largely Undeveloped with existing Agricultural structures 

Planning & Zoning Department 
Plat Staff Report  
Case: PL-19-0153 

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(11)



 
 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Platting History:   374 A B FLEURY; 898 M RAFFERTY; 204 WC COLEMAN 
 
Site Aerial:   

 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the 
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends: 
 

 Disapproval 
 Approval, as presented. 
 Approval, per the following conditions: 

 
ATTACHED EXHIBITS 

1. Plat drawing 
 
APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS  

 
1. If approved by City Council, within 30 days the applicant shall provide the Planning 

Department one revised electronic plan set that incorporates all comments. 
 

CITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAT RECORDING AND FILING 

A plat shall not be filed with the Ellis County Clerk until: 

1. All utilities, infrastructure, and other required improvements have been installed and a 
letter of acceptance associated with the utilities and infrastructure installation has been 
received from the Public Works Department; 

2. A drainage study has been conducted and/or a traffic impact analysis has been conducted as 
required by the City’s subdivision ordinance.  

 
STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION 
 Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 Chris Webb      Shon Brooks, AICP 
 Planner       Director of Planning 
 cwebb@waxahachie.com    sbrooks@waxahachie.com  
 



SA
NC

TU
AR

Y 
PL

AC
E

50
' R

.O
.W

.

QUIET W
ATERS W

AY

50' R.O.W
.

PLACID LANE

50' R.O.W
.

DWELLING PLACE
50' R.O.W.

HOWARD RD. (FM 877)

LANE
50' R.O.W

.

50' R.O.W
.

HARBOR POINT

NICHOL TERRY AND MICHAEL TERRY,
HUSBAND AND WIFE

DOCUMENT NO. 2017-35036
D.R.E.C.T.

9
48,366 SF

10
52,102 SF

10
43,650 SF

11
43,650 SF

1
50,126 SF

2

1
45,574 SF

7
59,127 SF

8
54,208 SF

11
58,434 SF

2
50,239 SF

6
54,702 SF

5
47,600 SF

7
54,698 SF

40
47,694 SF

41
50,723 SF

43
48,552 SF

42
43,650 SF

44
46,770 SF

45
43,650 SF

47
48,503 SF

6
49,301 SF

4
44,524 SF

3
50,825 SF

5
43,650 SF

2
50,142 SF1

50,341 SF

5
60,366 SF

4
52,819 SF3

45,199 SF2
48,550 SF

1
49,422 SF

46
44,557 SF

10
46,253 SF

9

10
45,574 SF

38
43,650 SF

39
43,650 SF

PASS

HUNTER

9
44,993 SF

BLOCK E BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

12
54,351 SF

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK D

PART OF
BOBBY LIDE, INC.

VOLUME 2720, PAGE 1243
D.R.E.C.T.

3
53,026 SF

4
48,284 SF

1
69,855 SF

8
48178 SF

48
48,432 SF

11
44,526

TERRY MICHAEL JEFFCOAT and wife,
MARGIE M. JEFFCOAT

VOLUME 1055, PAGE 218
D.R.E.C.T.

12

OPEN SPACE &
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

LOT 12, BLOCK D
164,453 SF

POINT OF
BEGINNING

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

90' R.O.W.

J.    V O L K
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972.201.3100   Texas Registration No. F-11962

c o n s u l t i n g

SHEET 1 OF 3

Applicant:
J.H. Development
421 Century Way

Red Oak, TX 75154
Phone: 512-567-4504

Contact: Chip Boyd

Engineer/Surveyor:
 J. Volk Consulting, Inc.

830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074

972-201-3100
Contact: Jay Volk

<CM>

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

23 January 2020

ZONED: SF-1

9
48,3488,3668,3

29 PHASE 2
F43,643,63,650 SF3,650 SF

  MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 2EE

5

PHASE 2

P

38888
3 6

38
3

W ROAD

77

35E 877

877

35E

77

55

876

984

287

287
PIGG ROAD

HOW
ARD ROAD

MLK BLVD

HUNTER PASS

OLD CHURCH

PARKS SCHOOL HOUSE

ROAD

WAXAHACHIE 

SITE

 ROAD

Owner:
Bobby Lide, Inc.

PO Box 55
Wortham, TX 76693

SHEET 1

SHEET 2

GENERAL NOTES:

1. All lot corners monumented with a 1/2" iron rod with a
yellow plastic cap stamped "JVC"unless otherwise
noted.

2. All Utility easements and Drainage easements within
this platted property are created by this plat, unless
otherwise noted.

3. Basis of Bearing and Coordinates shown hereon refer to
"Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central
Zone (4202), North American Datum of 1983 on Grid
Coordinate values.

4. Per FEMA FIRM Panel 48139C0350F dated June 3, 2013,
the Plat limits lie in "Zone  X" and are of minimal flood
hazard.

BENCHMARKS:

MONUMENT NO. 1:
Mag nail set in asphalt paving of Farm to Market Road No. 887
approximately 272' southwest of the dam across Waxahachie Lake.
The monument is located approximately 40' west of a fire hydrant
and 120' southwest of a telephone pedestal.

Elevation = 556.55' (Field)

MONUMENT NO. 2:
Mag nail set in asphalt paving of Farm to Market Road No. 887
approximately 1270' southeast of the intersection of Farm to Market
Road No. 887 and Hunter Pass. The monument is located
approximately 84' southeast of a mailbox, 138' southeast of a power
pole and 32' southwest of a barbed wire fence.

Elevation = 556.73' (Field)

PLAT

SANCTUARY
PL-19-0153

110.484 ACRES
LOTS 1-48, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK B;
LOTS 1-10 BLOCK C; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK D;

LOTS 1-5, BLOCK E
86 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
1 COMMON AREA LOT

OUT OF THE
W.C. COLEMAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 204

A.B. FLEURY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 374
M. RAFFERTY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 898

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP



PLACID LANE

50' R.O.W
.

50' R.O.W.

DWELLING PLACE
50' R.O.W.

50' R.O.W
.

PARADISE COVE

HIDDEN WATERS WAY

HA
RB

O
R 

PO
IN

T
50

' R
.O

.W
.

Q
UI

ET
 W

AT
ER

S 
W

AY
50

' R
.O

.W
.

LANE
50' R.O.W

.

JOHN D. HEDRICK
DOCUMENT NO. 2019-11374

D.R.E.C.T.

12
63,092 SF

9
48,366 SF

10
52,102 SF

25
50,250 SF

26
43,650 SF

28
45,105 SF

27
43,650 SF

5
43,596 SF

3
43,650 SF

4
43,592 SF

9
43,650 SF

8
43,650 SF

7
43,592 SF

6
43,596 SF

10
43,650 SF

11
43,650 SF

2
43,561 SF

1
50,126 SF

2
45,687 SF

1
45,574 SF

19
43,813 SF

18
44,984 SF

15
45,735 SF

20
44,184 SF

13
44,970 SF

23
47,570 SF

14
45,807 SF

21
58,425 SF

22
61,237 SF

24
80,688 SF

7
59,127 SF

8
54,208 SF

11
58,434 SF

7
54,698 SF

40
47,694 SF

41
50,723 SF

43
48,552 SF

42
43,650 SF

10
46,253 SF

30
43,650 SF

31
43,650 SF

5
45,574 SF

7
45,687 SF

9
45,687 SF

10
45,574 SF

8
45,687 SF

4
45,687 SF

3
45,687 SF

29
43,650 SF

37
43,650 SF

38
43,650 SF

39
43,650 SF

33
58,279 SF

32
43,650 SF

34
53,642 SF

35
43,650 SF

36
43,650 SF

6
45,574 SF

9
44,993 SF

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

12
54,351 SF

BLOCK C

BLOCK A

BLOCK D

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

JOHN DALE HEDRICK
VOLUME 2282, PAGE 371

D.R.E.C.T.

PART OF
BOBBY LIDE, INC.

VOLUME 2720, PAGE 1243
D.R.E.C.T.

TERRY MICHAEL JEFFCOAT and wife,
MARGIE M. JEFFCOAT

VOLUME 1055, PAGE 218
D.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF
BOBBY LIDE, INC.

VOLUME 2720, PAGE 1243
D.R.E.C.T.

8
48178 SF

11
44,526 SF

16
44,157 SF

17
49,128 SF

12

OPEN SPACE &
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

LOT 12, BLOCK D
164,453 SF

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

BLOCK B
BLOCK C

BLOCK A

PHASE 2

38
PHASE 1  MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 1M EE

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

43 64 0 S
88888

W ROAD

77

35E 877

877

35E

77

55

876

984

287

287
PIGG ROAD

HOW
ARD ROAD

MLK BLVD

HUNTER PASS

OLD CHURCH

PARKS SCHOOL HOUSE

ROAD

WAXAHACHIE 

SITE

 ROAD

SHEET 1

SHEET 2

<CM>

Applicant:
J.H. Development
421 Century Way

Red Oak, TX 75154
Phone: 512-567-4504

Contact: Chip Boyd

Engineer/Surveyor:
 J. Volk Consulting, Inc.

830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074

972-201-3100
Contact: Jay Volk

Owner:
Bobby Lide, Inc.

PO Box 55
Wortham, TX 76693

J.    V O L K
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972.201.3100   Texas Registration No. F-11962

c o n s u l t i n g

SHEET 2 OF 3

23 January 2020

ZONED: SF-1

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

PLAT

SANCTUARY
PL-19-0153

110.484 ACRES
LOTS 1-48, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK B;
LOTS 1-10 BLOCK C; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK D;

LOTS 1-5, BLOCK E
86 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
1 COMMON AREA LOT

OUT OF THE
W.C. COLEMAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 204

A.B. FLEURY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 374
M. RAFFERTY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 898

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS



“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

“ ” 

         APPROVED BY: Planning and Zoning Commission City of Waxahachie

By:       ____________________________________                ____________________
            Chairperson                                                                          Date

            ____________________________________                ____________________
            Attest                                                                                     Date

       IF APPLICABLE, APPROVED BY: City Council
      City of Waxahachie

By:      ____________________________________                ____________________
           Mayor                                                                                    Date

           ____________________________________                ____________________
           Attest                                                                                     Date

Applicant:
J.H. Development
421 Century Way

Red Oak, TX 75154
Phone: 512-567-4504

Contact: Chip Boyd

Engineer/Surveyor:
 J. Volk Consulting, Inc.

830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074

972-201-3100
Contact: Jay Volk

Owner:
Bobby Lide, Inc.

PO Box 55
Wortham, TX 76693

J.    V O L K
830 Central Parkway East, Suite 300
Plano, Texas 75074
972.201.3100   Texas Registration No. F-11962

c o n s u l t i n g

SHEET 3 OF 3

23 January 2020

ZONED: SF-1

PLAT

SANCTUARY
PL-19-0153

110.484 ACRES
LOTS 1-48, BLOCK A; LOTS 1-12, BLOCK B;
LOTS 1-10 BLOCK C; LOTS 1-11, BLOCK D;

LOTS 1-5, BLOCK E
86 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS
1 COMMON AREA LOT

OUT OF THE
W.C. COLEMAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 204

A.B. FLEURY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 374
M. RAFFERTY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 898

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS



HO
W

AR
D 

RD
. (

FM
 8

77
)

SANCTUARY PLACE

QUIET WATERS WAY

PLACID LANE

DW
EL

LIN
G 

PL
AC

E

PARADISE COVE

HA
RB

OR
 P

OI
NT

HI
DD

EN
 W

AT
ER

S W
AY

HARBOR POINT

QUIET WATERS WAY

HARBOR POINT

TER PASS
HUN

BO

J.    V O L K
c o n s u l t i n g SANCTUARY

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING DATE(S) 
Planning & Zoning Commission:   January 28, 2020 
 
CAPTION 
Public Hearing on a request by Mark Thedford, Akamai Designs, for a Replat of Lot 7R, Block B, Indian 
Hills Addition, Unit VII to create Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block A, Stone Creek Estates, 1.787 acres (Property ID 
221873) – Owner: Akamai Designs Inc. (RP-19-0157) 
 
APPLICANT REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting a replat that would separate Lot 7 Block B of the Indian Hills Addition into 3 
different lots, and allow for the construction of two (2) single family homes in addition to the one being 
constructed on Santa Fe Trail.  
 
CASE INFORMATION 
Applicant:    Mark Thedford, Akamai Designs 
 
Property Owner(s):   Mark Thedford 
 
Site Acreage:    1.787 acres 
 
Number of Lots:    3 lots 
 
Number of Dwelling Units:  3 units  
 
Park Land Dedication: The cash in lieu of park land dedication for this case is estimated 

at $800.00 (2 residential dwellings at $400.00 per dwelling). 
 
Adequate Public Facilities:  Adequate facilities are available for this property. 
 
SUBJECT PROPERTY 
General Location: 106 Santa Fe Trail 
 
Parcel ID Number(s): 221873 
 
Current Zoning:    SF-1 
 
Existing Use:     A home is being constructed near the cul-de-sac. 
 
Platting History:   The final plat for Indian Hills Ph VII was approved by City Council 

on 9/17/2001. 
 

Planning & Zoning Department 
Plat Staff Report  
Case: RP-19-0157 

avillarreal
Typewritten Text
(12)



 
 

  Page 2 of 3 
 

Site Aerial:   
 

 
 
PON RESPONSES 

- Inside 200 ft. Notification Area: Staff received seven (7) letters of opposition and one (1) letter 
of support for the proposed development. 

 
- Outside 200 ft. Notification Area: Staff received thirty-eight (38) letters of opposition for the 

proposed development.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the 
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends: 
 

 Disapproval 
 Approval, as presented. 
 Approval, per the following conditions: 

 
ATTACHED EXHIBITS 

1. Plat drawing 
2. PON Responses 

 
APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS  

 
1. If approved by City Council, within 30 days the applicant shall provide the Planning 

Department one revised electronic plan set that incorporates all comments. 
 

CITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAT RECORDING AND FILING 

A plat shall not be filed with the Ellis County Clerk until: 

1. All utilities, infrastructure, and other required improvements have been installed and a 
letter of acceptance associated with the utilities and infrastructure installation has been 
received from the Public Works Department; 

2. A drainage study has been conducted and/or a traffic impact analysis has been conducted as 
required by the City’s subdivision ordinance.  

 



 
 

  Page 3 of 3 
 

STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION 
 Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 Chris Webb      Shon Brooks, AICP 
 Planner       Director of Planning 
 cwebb@waxahachie.com    sbrooks@waxahachie.com  
 




















































































































